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     Town Council Agenda Report  

 
 
Date:   September  8, 2020   Item No. 9 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Town Council 
 
Subject: AWARD CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT TO PREPARE THE 

HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE FOR THE 6TH CYCLE 2021-2029 

From:  Douglas Robertson, Town Manager 
 
Submitted by: Lori Lamson, Assistant Town Manager 
   
Budgeted Item:  Yes   No  N/A    

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Town Council award a contract to Terra Nova Planning and Research Inc. for the 
preparation of the Housing Element Update for the 6th Cycle between 2021-2029, 
including the required environmental review and analysis under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
BACKGROUND 

Every eight (8) years every city and county in California is required to prepare an updated 
Housing Element amending the jurisdictions General Plan.  This updated Housing 
Element must be submitted to the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) for certification.  Certification is dependent on incorporating State 
housing regulations as well as identifying new housing unit opportunities.  The exact 
number of housing units assigned to Apple Valley by the State is referred to as the 
Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA).  This cycle, Apple Valley has a total of 
4,274 RHNA units which is a combination of Moderate, above Moderate, Low Income and 
Very Low Income categories. This is an increase of last cycle which was a total of 3,334 
RHNA units. Certification of the Housing Element is contingent on incorporating the 
RHNA units into the Town’s Land Use Plan and complying with all State Housing 
regulations.  Certification is necessary for obtaining certain grants that assist the Town in 
building roads, parks and other capital projects. 
 
On June 25, 2020 the Town issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to prepare the 6th 
Cycle Housing Element Update. The Planning Division received two (2) proposals. After 
carefully reviewing each response for compliance with the RFP, both proposals were 
complete and Terra Nova Planning and Research Inc., was the lowest responsive bidder.  
In addition, Terra Nova has had experience working within the Town on the North Apple 
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Valley Industrial Specific Plan, the Comprehensive General Plan and Development Code 
Update, the Climate Action Plan, the 4th and 5th Cycles of the previous Housing Element 
and a variety of smaller projects including four LAFCO submittals for annexations. Terra 
Nova has an expansive knowledge of the issues within the Town and are well qualified to 
complete the work. The following results for the proposals are as follows: 
 
Terra Nova Planning and Research Inc.…………………………………….. $63,520.00 
4Leaf, Inc. ……………………………………………………………………… $65,618.00 
 
Work will consist of research and data collection, public workshops, communication with 
HCD, evaluating the Town’s Land Use Plan, preparation of CEQA documents, 
correspondence and consultation with Tribal interests and public hearings before the 
Planning Commission and Town Council.  The schedule anticipates the completion of the 
Housing Element by September 2021, which complies with the requirements of 
completion and submittal of the Housing Element to HCD by October 2021.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The proposals for the project were reviewed by staff to ensure inclusion of all necessary 
requirements for eventual submittal to HCD and certification of the Housing Element.  The 
RFP was reviewed and approved by the Town Council at the June 23, 2020 Town Council 
Meeting. Both submittals received were considered complete and that Terra Nova 
Planning and Research, Inc. is considered to be most qualified, and a responsible and 
responsive in the proposal bidding process. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for this project is part of the funds awarded to the Town of Apple Valley through 
the State of California SB2 Planning Grants Program under the Department of Housing 
and Community Development.  The Town was awarded a total of $310,000.00, of which 
all of this contract will be covered under this grant monies. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Exhibit A – Proposal from Terra Nova Planning and Research, Inc. 
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